

Taylor & Francis Journals Standard Reference Style Guide: Chicago author-date

This reference guide details methods for citing and formatting reference entries in accordance with principles established by *The Chicago Manual of Style*, Seventeenth Edition (2017). For more information about Chicago author-date style, visit https://www.chicagomanualofstyle.org

If you have access to the software, a corresponding EndNote output style can be downloaded from https://endnote.com/style_download/tf-standard-chicago-author-date by searching for the style named TF-Standard Chicago AD.

Version 2.0

Date of original release: 2007

Date of current version's release: 30 May 2023

Table of Contents

Citations	2
References	
Journal article models	12
Book models	19
Book chapter models	
Conference models	29
Dissertation and thesis models	30
Report models	31
Newspaper models	33
Magazine models	34
Web models	35
Software, app, and dataset models	36
Audiovisual models	39
Unpublished and informally published model	44
Archival material models	45
Patent, legal case, and statute models	46



Citations **Placement** Citations appear in narrative form or fully parenthetical form. In a narrative citation, the author surname or surnames appear as part the sentence. The publication year may either be set apart in parentheses after the surname(s) or be integrated into the sentence. This phenomenon occurs frequently in nature, according to Singh and Harris (2018). In 2018, Singh and Harris reported on the frequency with which this phenomenon occurs in nature. In a parenthetical citation, the author surname(s) and the publication year appear together in parentheses. Parenthetical citations should usually be placed at the end of a sentence, before the terminal punctuation (e.g., period). This phenomenon occurs frequently in nature (Singh and Harris 2018). If positioned elsewhere in a sentence, the citation precedes any nonterminal punctuation (e.g., comma, semicolon). This phenomenon occurs frequently in nature (Singh and Harris 2018); however, other phenomena occur more frequently. A citation with a page number accompanies a quoted passage. A parenthetical Quoted citation is situated after a shorter quoted passage outside the quotation marks. In passages and the citation, a comma is inserted after the publication year, followed by a page citations number, if the passage occurs on a single page of the original text, or page numbers connected by an en dash, if the passage falls on a span of pages in the original text. Few would dispute the claim that "science education can promote a valuable indeed, virtuous—skepticism among young adults" (Liu et al. 2009, 124). Few would dispute the claim that "science education can promote a valuable indeed, virtuous—skepticism among young adults who are coming of age in an era of pervasive gullibility" (Liu et al. 2009, 124-125). When narrative citations are used with shorter quoted passages, the year and location information may be inserted together in parentheses immediately after the author's name or authors' names.



Liu et al. (2009, 124) make the indisputable claim that "science education can promote a valuable—indeed, virtuous—skepticism among young adults."

Liu et al. (2009, 124–125) make the indisputable claim that "science education can promote a valuable—indeed, virtuous—skepticism among young adults who are coming of age in an era of pervasive gullibility."

The year and location may, alternatively, be positioned together in parentheses after the quoted passage.

Liu et al. make the indisputable claim that "science education can promote a valuable—indeed, virtuous—skepticism among young adults" (2009, 124).

Liu et al. make the indisputable claim that "science education can promote a valuable—indeed, virtuous—skepticism among young adults who are coming of age in an era of pervasive gullibility" (2009, 124–125).

If multiple quoted passages from the same original text appear in a paragraph without interruption from other cited works, a full parenthetical citation is situated after the first quoted passage, while only a page number, in parentheses, is situated after each subsequent quoted passage.

Few would dispute the claim that "science education can promote a valuable—indeed, virtuous—skepticism among young adults" (Liu et al. 2009, 124), even less the assertion that "public investment in science education pays dividends" (127). One may, though, question whether increased school funding can alone curb the unhealthy influence of social media on adolescent minds in our present "era of pervasive gullibility" (125).

Narrative citations for a string of quoted passages from the same original text are handled in a similar fashion

A quoted passage containing 40 or more words is set in indented "block" form, without enclosing quotation marks. A parenthetical citation appears after the terminal punctuation that closes the block.

Vermin—always the negative, the "inedible" in the vermin/livestock dichotomy—are taboo cuisine because their behavior in human domiciles, suggestive of licentious freedom and an amoral proclivity to revel in the unclean matter their cohabitants strive to keep secret, offends. (Outis 2006, 71)

The year and location elements of a narrative citation may be situated, in parentheses, after an author's name or authors' names in an introduction to the block quote.

As Outis (2006, 71) writes,

Vermin—always the negative, the "inedible" in the vermin/livestock dichotomy—are taboo cuisine because their behavior in human domiciles, suggestive of licentious freedom and an amoral proclivity to revel in the unclean matter their cohabitants strive to keep secret, offends.



Otherwise, the year and location elements may be placed, in parentheses, after the terminal punctuation that closes the block.

As Outis writes,

Vermin—always the negative, the "inedible" in the vermin/livestock dichotomy—are taboo cuisine because their behavior in human domiciles, suggestive of licentious freedom and an amoral proclivity to revel in the unclean matter their cohabitants strive to keep secret, offends. (2006, 71)

Authors

One author

Citations of a reference with one credited author include the author's surname and the publication year. [Example]

Two authors

Citations of a reference with two credited authors include the surnames of both authors and the publication year. The surnames are separated by "and" in both narrative citations and parenthetical citations. [Example]

Three authors

Citations of a reference with three credited authors include the surnames of all authors and the publication year. The surnames are separated by commas, with "and" appearing before the third author's surname in both narrative citations and parenthetical citations. [Example]

Four or more authors

Citations of a reference with three credited authors include the surname of the first author, followed by "et al." and the publication year. [Example]

Organizational authors

Citations of a reference with a credited organizational author feature an abbreviation of the organization's name if the reference entry's author listing includes the abbreviation. [Example]

If the reference entry's author listing spells out the organization's name, citations should display the name in full and should not introduce an abbreviation.

[Example]



No credited author

Citations of a reference with no credited author display a short title in title case (headline capitalization), instead of an author name. Quotation marks enclose journal article and book chapter titles in citations. [Example]

Book, report, and website titles in citations are italicized. [Example]

"Anonymous" is used in an entry only if the reference is credited to an otherwise unnamed author under this moniker.

First authors with the same surnames

Citations of references by different first authors who share the same surname are distinguished by inserting the first authors' given-name initials to the citations. The initials are inserted even when subsequent authors and publication years in citations differ.

Narrative: G. R. Smith et al. (2001) and T. J. Smith and Gladwell (2012)

Parenthetical: (G. R. Smith et al. 2001; T. J. Smith and Gladwell 2012)

Same first authors and same publication years

If multiple references with (a) four or more authors, (b) the same first authors, and (c) the same publication years exist, the references are not cited in the usual contracted form. The surname lists in citations are extended to feature the surnames of enough authors, beyond the first author, to show the differences among these references.

Narrative: Parnell, Foster, et al. (2018) and Parnell, Klein, et al. (2018)

Parenthetical: (Parnell, Foster, et al. 2018; Parnell, Klein, et al. 2018)

Publication years

Range

Citations of a reference that features a publication date range show the range of years linked by an en dash ("-"). The second year appears in full and is not truncated if the century repeats. [Example]

Forthcoming

The word "forthcoming" replaces the publication year in citations of a reference that has been accepted for publication but has not yet been published in any form (online or print). [Example]

No date

The abbreviation "n.d." (for "no date") replaces the publication year in citations of a reference with no identified publication date. [Example]



Circa

In citations of a reference with an estimated, "circa" publication date, the abbreviation "ca." precedes the publication year or year range. In a parenthetical citation a comma appears between the author listing and "ca." [Example]

Original publication and republication

In citations of a republished work, the original publication year from the reference entry appears in square brackets before republication year. [Example]

Same authors with same publication years

Alphabetical designators ("a," "b," "c") are affixed to the publication years in entries for references with identical author listings published in the same year. Citations of such references carry the same designators.

Narrative: Murakami (2003a, 2003b, n.d.-a, forthcoming-a)

Parenthetical: (Murakami 2003a, 2003b, n.d.-a, forthcoming-a)

Multiple citations

Multiple citations in the same parenthetical unit are arranged alphabetically by author surname(s) first. Semicolons separate citations with different author lists. When citations with the same author lists exist, the author surname or surnames appear once, followed by the references' publication years, separated by commas if no page numbers are included and ordered among themselves in chronological order: (a) dated citations, (b) no date/"n.d." citations, and (d) "forthcoming" citations. Semicolons, rather than commas, separate the publication years of citations with the same author list if any one citation among them includes a page number

(Abbas and Ludden 2018; Carlyle 1997; 2015a, 76; 2015b; Carlyle et al. 1997; Federation of State Medical Boards 2000, n.d.; Piquant 2019, forthcoming)

When multiple narrative citations with the same author list exist, the author surname or surnames appear once, followed by parenthetical units in which publication years are ordered chronologically and separated by commas if no page numbers are included. Semicolons separate the publication years if a page number is included.

Carlyle (1997; 2015a, 76; 2015b), Federation of State Medical Boards (2000, n.d.), Abbas and Ludden (2018), Carlyle et al. (1997), and Piquant (2019, forthcoming)



Multivolume work citations

If a reference entry encompasses only a single volume of a nonperiodical multivolume work, in-text citations of this resource do not need to note volume cited.

Reference:

Bendazzi, Giannalberto. 2016. Foundations—The Golden Age. Vol. 1 of Animation: A World History. Boca Raton, FL: CRC Press.

Citations:

Bendazzi (2016) or (Bendazzi 2016) [without page]

Bendazzi (2016, 119) or (Bendazzi 2016, 119) [with page]

In-text citations of a reference entry that covers multiple volumes of a nonperiodical multivolume work do, however, indicate the specific volume of the work being cited. If a citation does not include a specific page, the abbreviation "vol." followed by the number of the volume being cited appears after the publication year. If a citation includes a specific page or pages, a volume number alone, followed by a colon, precedes the page number or numbers.

Reference:

Bendazzi, Giannalberto. 2016. *Animation: A World History*. 3 vols. Boca Raton, FL: CRC Press.

Citations:

Bendazzi (2016, vol. 1) or (Bendazzi 2016, vol. 1) [without page]

Bendazzi (2016, 1:119) or (Bendazzi 2016, 1:119) [with page]

An Arabic digit should be used to designate the volume number in a reference entry and in citations. Roman numerals should not be used.

Secondary resource citations

The citation of a secondary resource—a work cited within a primary resource but not itself consulted—features the surname and year (when available) of the work cited within the primary resource and, following the phrase "quoted in," a citation of the primary resource with a page location as needed. Only the primary resource is included as an entry in the reference list.

Narrative: Huang and Zoller (1995, quoted in Zhu 2010, 18)

Parenthetical: (Huang and Zoller 1995, quoted in Zhu 2010, 18)

Personal communication

Personal communication, such as a personal e-mail, personal interview, private or unarchived letter, or telephone conversation, is documented through citations only, without associated reference entries.

Narrative: Tomi Adeyemi (pers. comm., September 3, 2014)

Parenthetical: (Tomi Adeyemi, pers. comm., September 3, 2014)



Tables and figures

Citations are usually included in table footnotes, rather than in the table body. If they do appear in the table body, the citations are placed in a separate column or row with an appropriate heading. Citations are best incorporated into figure captions, rather than into graphics.

References

Placement and order

The reference section is positioned at the end of the main text under the heading "References." The section includes entries for all works cited throughout the text. The following rules apply to the arrangement of entries in the section:

- 1. Reference entries are ordered alphabetically by their first authors' surnames.
- 2. Reference entries credited to first authors who share surnames are ordered alphabetically by the first authors' given names.
- 3. References entries credited to the same first authors, with identical surnames and given names, are ordered alphabetically by the subsequent authors' surnames and given names.
- 4. Reference entries featuring the same full author lists are ordered chronologically by their publication dates (first, dated entries—by original date for republished works; then, no date/"n.d." entries; finally, "Forthcoming" entries).
- 5. Reference entries featuring the same full author lists and the same publication dates are ordered alphabetically by their titles, with introductory articles ("A," "An," "The") ignored. Lowercase alphabetical designators ("a," "b," "c," etc.) are affixed to the publication years of entries in this subset of references.
- 6. Reference entries with organizational authors are ordered alphabetically among the other entries by the organizations' names or initials/acronyms. Introductory articles ("A," "An," "The") are ignored.
- 7. Reference entries with organizational authors are ordered alphabetically among the other entries by the organizations' names or initials/acronyms. Introductory articles ("A," "An," "The") are ignored.
- 8. Reference entries with no credited authors are ordered alphabetically among the other entries by their titles. Introductory articles ("A," "An," "The") are ignored.



The list below illustrates application of these rules.

Baker, Sherry, Quint Randle, Edward L. Carter, and Scott Lunt. 2007.

Dewey, John. (1916) 2015.

Dewey, John. (1927) 1997.

Glennie, Evelyn, percussion. 1990.

Goodwin, Prue, ed. 2005.

Goodwin, Walter. 2005.

Howard, Simon, Debra L. Oswald, and Mackenzie Kirkman. 2018.

Howard, Simon, and Samuel R. Sommers. 2015.

Howard, Simon, and Samuel R. Sommers. 2019.

Klein, JoAnna. 2018a. "The Mysterious Green Orbs That Float by Day and Sink at Night."

Klein JoAnna. 2018b. "Pando, the Most Massive Organism on Earth, Is Shrinking." NIAAA (National Insitute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism). 2016.

"Physician Oversight of Specialized Emergency Medical Services." 2019.

Zhao, Chloé, dir. 2020.

Dashes should not replace names repeated in the author listings of successive reference entries. Instead, the repeated names should be displayed.

All reference entries in the section are set with a hanging indent.

Authors and other credited individuals

Author lists

In a reference entry, the names of the first individual credited as an author or principal creator (e.g., film directors) are presented in inverted, surname-first format, with any suffix (e.g., "Jr.") positioned after the given names. The names of subsequent authors in an entry are presented in given-name–first format. The given names of authors may be recorded in full or as initials. In the latter case, a period appears after and a space appears between each letter of the given-name initial(s).

[Example of author given names in full], [Example of author given names as initials]

The word "and" appears before the final author's name unit in any entry with two to ten credited authors. Commas separate individual authors' name units in a reference entry's author list with three to ten credited authors. If eleven or more authors are associated with a reference, the entry presents the first seven credited authors, followed by a comma and the phrase "et al."

Dashes should not replace names repeated in the author listings of successive reference entries. Instead, the repeated names should be displayed.

[Example for list with one author], [Example for list with two authors], [Example for list with three—ten authors], [Example for list with eleven or more authors]



Other lists

Editors or translators may stand before a title element in a reference entry as the resource's principal creators, if no authors can be credited. When this occurs, the names in such a list are formatted in accordance with the same rules that govern the formatting of names in author lists. The abbreviation "ed." ends the list if one editor serves the principal-creator role, and the abbreviation "eds." ends the list if multiple editors fill the author positions in the reference entry. The abbreviation "trans." Is added to the list if one or more translators serve as principal creators.

[Example of editor in author list], [Example of editors in author list]

If the reference entry credits an author or authors, editor and/or translator names are added as a secondary list after a title element. Such an editor list is preceded by the role-identifying phrase "edited by." The phrase "translated by" precedes a translator list. The names recorded in such a secondary list are presented in givenname—first order. The given names of editors and/or translators may be recorded in full or as initials. In the latter case, a period appears after and a space appears between each letter of the given-name initial(s).

[Example of editor given names in full], [Example of editor given names as initials], [Example of translator given names in full], [Example of translator given names as initials]

The word "and" appears before the final name unit in a list of two to ten credited individuals. Commas separate the name units in a list of three to ten credited individuals. If eleven or more editors or translators are associated with a reference, the entry displays the first seven credited individuals, followed by a comma and the phrase "et al."

[Example of editor list], [Example of translator list]

Periodical resources

The title of an article published in a journal, magazine, or newspaper is set in roman font and enclosed within quotation marks. The title of a journal, magazine, or newspaper is italicized and is not set inside quotation marks. Title case capitalization is applied to both types of titles. The first letter of a coordinating conjunction ("and," "but," "or," "nor"), preposition, or article ("a," "an," "the") is not capitalized unless the word begins or ends the title or subtitle.

The reference entry for an article that has published in a journal whose volumes are divided into issues features a volume number and an issue number, enclosed in parentheses, even if issues within the volume are continuously paginated. An issue number is omitted from an article's reference entry if the publishing journal's volumes are not divided into issues.

[Example with issue number], [Example without issue number]



The opening page and the closing page in the page range of a journal article's reference entry are connected through an en dash. All digits in the page range are displayed. Digits in the thousands, hundred, and/or tens places of the opening page number that are repeated in closing page number are not suppressed in the reference entry's page range.

Nonperiodical resources

The title of a book or a report in a reference entry is italicized. The title of a book chapter is set in roman font and enclosed within quotation marks. Title case capitalization is applied to both types of titles. The first letter of a coordinating conjunction ("and," "but," "or," "nor"), preposition, and article ("a," "an," "the") is not capitalized unless the word begins or ends the title or subtitle.

A reference entry for a book, book chapter, or a report includes the location and name of the resource's publisher. The location element of the reference mentions only the name of the city in which the publisher operates, if the city is considered an industry hub (e.g., London, New York, Amsterdam, Boston, Tokyo, Berlin). Otherwise, if the book or report was produced outside the United States or Canada, the location element indicates the city and the country from which the publisher operates. If the book or report was produced inside the United States or Canada, the location element features the city and the postal abbreviation of the state or province from which the publisher operates.

[Example of location with city only], [Example of location with city and country], [Example of location with city and postal abbreviation]

Author-supplied translated titles

Under most circumstances, if a reference entry features a non-English title, an author should supply an English-language translation of the title. The translated title, enclosed in square brackets and set in roman font, is inserted after the original title. The capitalization rules of the original language determine the case of the non-English title. Sentence-case formatting, though, is applied to the translated title. In the reference entry for a journal article or a book chapter, an English translation should be provided only for a non-English article or chapter title, not for the journal or book title.

[Example of translated title for journal article], [Example of translated title for book], [Example of translated title for book chapter]

Journals that publish non-English content may not uphold this style convention. For such journals, providing English-language translations for titles throughout the reference section may not be desirable. When preparing a manuscript for a journal that publishes content written in a language other than English, an author should consult with the journal's editorial office about the preferred convention.



URLs and DOIs

URLs

A uniform resource locator (URL) closes the reference entry for a webpage or other online resource. In the reference entry for a webpage, the author does not record an access date if he or she can determine the resource's date of publication or latest modification. The author records the date on which he or she accessed the webpage if he or she cannot identify a publication or revision date and must mark the year of publication as "n.d." (i.e., "no date"). An access date is also added before the URL in the reference entry for software if no version number can be identified.

[Example of webpage without access date], [Example of webpage with access date], [Example of software with access date]

DOIs

Digital object identifiers (DOIs) are commonly featured in reference entries for journal articles, as well as in entries for other types of electronic resources. Authors do not need to include DOIs for published journal articles when preparing manuscripts. If they are retrievable from registries, the DOIs for published journal articles will be added to entries as links in International DOI Foundation format during the production process.

	Journal article models
One author	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." Journal Title ## (#): ####-###. https://doi.org/DOI.
	Reference example
	Binnall, James M. 2019. "Jury Diversity in the Age of Mass Incarceration: An Exploratory Mock Jury Experiment Examining Felon-Jurors' Potential Impacts on Deliberations." <i>Psychology, Crime & Law</i> 25 (4): 345–363. https://doi.org/10.1080/1068316X.2018.1528359.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Binnall (2019) [narrative]; (Binnall 2019) [parenthetical]



Two authors	Reference format
- 110 00000	Author, Aaaa A., and Bbbb B. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." Journal Title ## (#): ####—####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	Reference example
	Machado, Mercedes M., and Jacqueline M. Swank. 2019. "Therapeutic Gardening: A Counseling Approach for Bereavement from Suicide." <i>Death Studies</i> 43 (10): 629–633. https://doi.org/10.1080/07481187.2018.1509908.
	Citation examples
	Machado and Swank (2019) [narrative]; (Machado and Swank 2019) [parenthetical]
Three authors	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." <i>Journal Title</i> ## (#): ####—####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	Reference example
	Nowacki, J. S., D. Creech, and M. Parks. 2020. "Political Climate, Voter Suppression Policies and Federal Sentencing Outcomes." <i>British Journal of Criminology</i> 60 (5): 1115–1180. https://doi.org/10.1093/bjc/azaa017.
	Citation examples
	Nowacki, Creech, and Parks (2020) [narrative]; (Nowacki, Creech, and Parks 2020) [parenthetical]
Four to ten	Reference format
authors	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, Cccc C. Author, Dddd D. Author, Eeee E. Author, Ffff F. Author, Gggg G. Author, Hhhh H. Author, Iiii I. Author, and Jjjj J. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." <i>Journal Title</i> ## (#): ####–####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	Reference example
	Prinzie, Peter, Geert Jan J. M. Stams, Maja Deković, Albert H. A. Reijntjes, and Jay Belsky. 2009. "The Relations between Parents' Big Five Personality Factors and Parenting: A Meta-analytic Review." <i>Journal of Personality and Social Psychology</i> 97 (2): 351–362. https://doi.org/10.1037/a0015823.
	Citation examples
	Prinzie et al. (2009) [narrative]; (Prinzie et al. 2009) [parenthetical]



Eleven or more	Reference format
authors	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, Cccc C. Author, Dddd D. Author, Eeee E. Author, Ffff F. Author, Gggg G. Author, et al. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." Journal Title ## (#): ####-####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	Reference example
	Adeloye, Davies, Adebanke Olawole-Isaac, Asa Auta, Mary T. Dewan, Chiamaka Omoyele, Nnenna Ezeigwe, Wura Jacobs, et al. 2019. "Epidemiology of Harmful Use of Alcohol in Nigeria: A Systematic Review and Meta-analysis." <i>American Journal of Drug and Alcohol Use</i> 45 (5): 438–450. https://doi.org/10.1080/00952990.2019.1628244.
	Citation examples
	Adeloye et al. (2019) [narrative]; (Adeloye et al. 2019) [parenthetical]
Organizational	Reference format
author, without abbreviation	Organizational Author. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." <i>Journal Title</i> ## (#): ####-####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	Reference example
	Select Committee on Race Relations and Immigration. 1975. "The Organisation of Race Relations Administration." <i>Journal of Ethnic and Migration Studies</i> 4 (3): 314–316. https://doi.org/10.1080/1369183X.1975.9975378.
	Citation examples
	Select Committee on Race Relations and Immigration (1975) [narrative]; (Select Committee on Race Relations and Immigration 1975) [parenthetical]
Organizational	Reference format
author, with abbreviation	ORGAUT (Organizational Author). yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." <i>Journal Title</i> ## (#): ####–####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	Reference example
	SCRRI (Select Committee on Race Relations and Immigration). 1975. "The Organisation of Race Relations Administration." <i>Journal of Ethnic and Migration Studies</i> 4 (3): 314–316. https://doi.org/10.1080/1369183X.1975.9975378.
	Citation examples
	SCRRI (1975) [narrative]; (SCRRI 1975) [parenthetical]



Ma anaditad	Peference format
No credited author	Reference format "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." yyyy. Journal Title ## (#): ####-####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	"Physician Oversight of Specialized Emergency Medical Services." 2019. <i>Prehospital Emergency Care</i> 23 (4): 590–591. https://doi.org/10.1080/10903127.2018.1551452.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	"Physician Oversight of Specialized Emergency Medical Services" (2019) [narrative]; ("Physician Oversight" 2019) [parenthetical]
Nonprimary	Reference format
author credit	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." With With the assistance of In collaboration with With contributions from Aaaa B. Author and Aaaa C. Author. <i>Journal Title</i> ## (#): ####-####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Bridgeman, R. 2009. "Crossing the Cultural Divide? Continuity in Ceramic Production and Consumption between the Almoravid and Mudéjar Periods in Seville." In collaboration with P. López Torres and M. V. Reina. <i>Al-Masāq</i> 21 (1): 13–29. https://doi.org/10.1080/09503110802704395.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Bridgeman (2009) [narrative]; (Bridgeman 2009) [parenthetical]
Author-supplied	Reference format
English translation of non-English title	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the journal article in the original language: Subtitle" [English translation of the title]. <i>Journal Title</i> ## (#): ####—####. https://doi.org/DOI.
3	Reference example
	Guzmán, Fernando, Javier Barros, Paola Corti, and Magdalena Pereira. 2019. "El rito bautismal y las imágenes pintadas en la iglesia de Curahuara de Carangas" [The baptismal rite and the images painted in the church of Curahuara de Carangas]. Colonial Latin American Review 28 (1): 81–105. https://doi.org/10.1080/10609164.2019.1585084.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Guzmán et al. (2019) [narrative]; (Guzmán et al. 2019) [parenthetical]



Published	Reference format
translation	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." Translated by Aaaa A. Translator, Bbbb B. Translator, and Cccc C. Translator. Journal Title ## (#): ####—####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Ioffe, D. G. 2017. "The Revolutionary Aesthetics of the Second Russian Avant-Garde: Michail Grobman's Subversive Art." Translated by N. Seligman Favorov. Russian Studies in Literature 53 (2): 172–200. https://doi.org/10.1080/10611975.2017.1400272.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	loffe (2017) [narrative]; (loffe 2017) [parenthetical]
Advance online	Reference format
publication	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." <i>Journal Title</i> . Advance online publication. https://doi.org/DOI.
	Reference example
	Chasi, Colin, and Cuthbeth Tagwirei. 2020. "Death and Ubuntu in Oliver Mtukudzi's Music." Muziki. Advance online publication. https://doi.org/10.1080/18125980.2020.1810110.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Chasi and Tagwirei (2020) [narrative]; (Chasi and Tagwirei 2020) [parenthetical]
Forthcoming	Reference format
article	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. Forthcoming. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." <i>Journal Title</i> .
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Rao, Smriti, Sarah Gammage, Julia Arnold, and Elizabeth Anderson. Forthcoming. "Human Mobility, COVID-19, and Policy Responses: The Rights and Claims-Making of Migrant Domestic Workers." Feminist Economics.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Rao et al. (forthcoming) [narrative]; (Rao et al., forthcoming) [parenthetical]



Article from	Reference format
journal without issue divisions	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." <i>Journal Title</i> ##:####-####. https://doi.org/DOI.
(volume only)	Reference example
	Bilish, Shane P., J. Nikolaus Callow, and Hamish McGowan. 2020. "Streamflow Variability and the Role of Snowmelt in a Marginal Snow Environment." <i>Arctic, Antarctic, and Alpine Research</i> 52:161–176. https://doi.org/10.1080/15230430.2020.1746517.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Bilish, Callow, and McGowan (2020) [narrative]; (Bilish, Callow, and McGowan 2020) [parenthetical]
Article with e-	Reference format
location	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." Journal Title ## (#): ######. https://doi.org/DOI.
	Reference example
	Capurro, G., J. Tustin, C. G. Jardine, and S. M. Driedger. 2022. "When Good Messages Go Wrong: Perspectives on COVID-19 Vaccines and Vaccine Communication from Generally Vaccine Accepting Individuals in Canada." <i>Human Vaccines & Immunotherapies</i> 18 (7): 2145822. https://doi.org/10.1080/21645515.2022.2145822.
	Citation examples
	Capurro et al. (2022) [narrative]; (Capurro et al. 2022) [parenthetical]
Article with e-	Reference format
location from journal without issue divisions (volume only)	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." Journal Title ##:#####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Björk, Annette, Ylva Rönngren, John Selander, Stig Vinberg, Ove Hellzen, and Niclas Olofsson. 2018. "Health, Lifestyle Habits, and Physical Fitness among Adults with ADHD Compared with a Random Sample of a Swedish General Population." <i>Society, Health & Vulnerability</i> 9:1553916. https://doi.org/10.1080/20021518.2018.1553916.
	Citation examples
	Björk et al. (2018) [narrative]; (Björk et al. 2018) [parenthetical]



Article from	Reference format
supplement	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Journal Article: Subtitle." In "Title of the Supplement," edited by Aaaa A. Editor, Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor. Supplement, <i>Journal Title</i> ## (S#): ####–####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Bender, Kimberly, Jennifer Wilson, Ellie Adelman, Jonah DeChants, and Matt Rutherford. 2020. "A Human-Centered Design Approach to Interdisciplinary Training on Homelessness." In "Advancing Social Work Education to Meet the Grand Challenge of Ending Homelessness," edited by Benjamin F. Henwood and Amanda Aykanian. Supplement, Journal of Social Work Education 56 (S1): S28–S45. https://doi.org/10.1080/10437797.2020.1743218.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Bender et al. (2020) [narrative]; (Bender et al. 2020) [parenthetical]
Abstract from	Reference format
compiled abstract issue	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Abstract: Subtitle." Abstract. Journal Title ## (#): ####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	Reference example
	Buckley, Anne F. 2017. "Mitochondrial Disorders: The Need for Precision Ultrastructural Analysis in Clinical Diagnosis." Abstract. <i>Ultrastructural Pathology</i> 41 (1): 76. https://doi.org/10.1080/01913123.2016.1269482.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Buckley (2017) [narrative]; (Buckley 2017) [parenthetical]
Review without	Reference format
original title	Reviewer, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Reviewer, and Cccc C. Reviewer. yyyy. Review of <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> , by Zzzz A. Author, Zzzz B. Author, and Zzzz C. Author. <i>Journal Title</i> ## (#): ####—####. https://doi.org/DOI.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	McCully, Alan. 2019. Review of <i>Teacher Preparation in Ireland: History, Policy and Future Directions</i> , by Tom O'Donoghue, Judith Harford, and Teresa O'Doherty. <i>History of Education</i> 48 (5): 700–702. https://doi.org/10.1080/0046760X.2018.1502366.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	McCully (2019) [narrative]; (McCully 2019) [parenthetical]



Special issue, cited in full	Reference format Editor, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor, eds. yyyy. "Title of the Special Issue: Subtitle." Special issue, Journal Title ## (#).
	<u>Reference example</u>
	McCone, David R., Cynthia J. Thomsen, and Janice H. Laurence, eds. 2018. "Sexual Harassment and Sexual Assault in the US Military." Special issue, <i>Military Psychology</i> 30 (3).
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	McCone, Thomsen, and Laurence (2018) [narrative]; (McCone, Thomsen, and Laurence 2018) [parenthetical]

	Book models
One author	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle.</i> City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Gibson, J. J. 1966. <i>The Senses Considered as Perceptual Systems</i> . Boston: Houghton Mifflin.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Gibson (1966) [narrative]; (Gibson 1966) [parenthetical]
Two authors	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A., and Bbbb B. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	Hodgson, Jay, and Steve MacLeod. 2014. Representing Sound: Notes on the Ontology of Recorded Musical Communications. Waterloo, ON: Wilfrid Laurier University Press.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Hodgson and MacLeod (2014) [narrative]; (Hodgson and MacLeod 2017) [parenthetical]



	1
Three authors	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	Bale, Tim, Paul Webb, and Monica Poletti. 2020. Footsoldiers: Political Party Membership in the 21st Century. Abingdon, UK: Routledge.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Bale, Webb, and Poletti (2020) [narrative]; (Bale, Webb, and Poletti 2020) [parenthetical]
Four to ten	Reference format
authors	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Goad, Philip, Ann Stephen, Andrew McNamara, Harriet Edquist, and Isabel Wünsche. 2019. Bauhaus Diaspora and Beyond: Transforming Education through Art, Design and Architecture. Melbourne: Melbourne University Press.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Goad et al. (2019) [narrative]; (Goad et al. 2019) [parenthetical]
Organizational	Reference format
author, without	Organizational Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
abbreviation	Reference example
	Shanghai Finance Institute P2P Research Group. 2017. Peer-to-Peer Lending with Chinese Characteristics: Development, Regulation and Outlook. Abingdon, UK: Routledge.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Shanghai Finance Institute P2P Research Group (2017) [narrative]; (Shanghai Finance Institute P2P Research Group 2017) [parenthetical]
Organizational	Reference format
author, with abbreviation	ORGAUT (Organizational Author). yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	SFI P2P RG (Shanghai Finance Institute P2P Research Group). 2017. Peer-to-Peer Lending with Chinese Characteristics: Development, Regulation and Outlook. Abingdon, UK: Routledge.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	SFI P2P RG (2017) [narrative]; (SFI P2P RG 2017) [parenthetical]



No credited	Reference format
author	Title of the Book: Subtitle. yyyy. City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	The Dual Disorders Recovery Book: A Twelve Step Program for Those of Us with Addiction and Emotional or Psychiatric Illness. 1993. Center City, MN: Hazelden Foundation.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Dual Disorders Recovery Book (1993) [narrative]; (Dual Disorders Recovery Book 1993) [parenthetical]
Nonprimary	Reference format
author credited	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . With With the assistance of In collaboration with With contributions from Aaaa B. Author. City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	Todorovic, Milan. 2016. Rethinking Strategy for Creative Industries: Innovation and Interaction. With Ali Bakir. Abingdon, UK: Routledge
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Todorovic (2016) [narrative]; (Todorovic 2016) [parenthetical]
Editor in author	Reference format
role	Editor, Aaaa A., ed. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	Goodwin, Prue, ed. 2005. <i>The Literate Classroom</i> . London: David Fulton.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Goodwin (2005) [narrative]; (Goodwin 2005) [parenthetical]
Multiple editors	Reference format
in author role	Editor, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor, eds. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	Malici, A., and E. S. Smith, eds. 2018. <i>Political Science Research in Practice</i> . New York: Routledge.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Malici and Smith (2005) [narrative]; (Malici and Smith 2005) [parenthetical]



Authored with	Reference format
editor	Author, Aaaa. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . Edited by Aaaa A. Editor. City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Arendt, Hannah. 1978. <i>The Life of the Mind</i> . Edited by Mary McCarthy. New York: Harcourt.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Arendt (1978) [narrative]; (Arendt 1978) [parenthetical]
Republication	Reference format
(reprint edition)	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. (yyyy) yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . Reprint, City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	Dewey, John. (1916) 1997. <i>Democracy and Education</i> . Reprint, New York: Free Press.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Dewey ([1916] 1997) [narrative]; (Dewey [1916] 1997) [parenthetical]
Numbered	Reference format
edition included	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . # ed. City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	du Cros, Hilary, and Bob McKercher. 2020. <i>Cultural Tourism</i> . 3rd ed. Abingdon, UK: Routledge.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	du Cros and McKercher (2020) [narrative]; (du Cros and McKercher 2020) [parenthetical]
Authored with	Reference format
editor, numbered	Author, Aaaa. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . Edited by Aaaa A. Editor, Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor. # ed. City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
edition included	Reference example
	Owen, Wilfred. 1988. <i>Selected Letters</i> . Edited by John Bell. 2nd ed. Oxford: Oxford University Press.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Owen (1988) [narrative]; (Owen 1988) [parenthetical]



Author-supplied	Reference format
English translation of	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the book in the original language: Subtitle</i> [English translation of the title]. City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
non-English title	<u>Reference example</u>
	Martín-Baró, Ignacio. 1995. <i>Violencia y agresión social</i> [Violence and social aggression]. Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic: Centro de Estudios Sociales.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Martín-Baró (1995) [narrative]; (Martín-Baró 1996) [parenthetical]
Published	Reference format
translation	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . Translated by Aaaa A. Translator. City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Bourdieu, Pierre. 1984. <i>Distinction: A Social Critique of the Judgement of Taste</i> . Translated by Richard Nice. Cambridge, MA: Harvard University Press.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Bourdieu (1984) [narrative]; (Bourdieu 1984) [parenthetical]
Published	Reference format
translation, edition included	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . Translated by Aaaa A. Translator, Bbbb B. Translator, and Cccc C. Translator. # ed. City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	Wittgenstein, Ludwig. 2009. <i>Philosophical Investigations</i> . Translated by G. E. M. Anscombe, P. M. S. Hacker, and Joachim Schulte. 4th rev. ed. Oxford: Wiley–Blackwell.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Wittgenstein (2009) [narrative]; (Wittgenstein 2009) [parenthetical]
Published	Reference format
translation with editor	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . Edited by Aaaa A. Editor. Translated by Aaaa A. Translator and Bbbb B. Translator. City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Weber, Max. 1947. <i>The Theory of Social and Economic Organization</i> . Edited by Talcott Parsons. Translated by A. M. Henderson and Talcott Parsons. New York: Free Press.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Weber (1947) [narrative]; (Weber 1947) [parenthetical]



Published	Reference format
translation with editor-translator	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> . Edited and translated by Aaaa A. Translator. City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Freud, Sigmund. 1989. <i>Jokes and Their Relation to the Unconscious</i> . Edited and translated by James Strachey. New York: W. W. Norton & Company.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Freud (1989) [narrative]; (Freud 1989) [parenthetical]
Single untitled	Reference format
volume, edition included	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Multivolume Work:</i> Subtitle. # ed. Vol. #. City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Whitehead, Alfred North, and Bertrand Russell. 1925. <i>Principia Mathematica</i> . 2nd ed. Vol. 1. Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Whitehead and Russell (1925) [narrative]; (Whitehead and Russell 1925) [parenthetical]
Single titled	Reference format
volume, edition included	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Volume: Subtitle</i> . # ed. Vol. # of <i>Title of the Multivolume Work</i> . City, ST Country: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	Hauser, Arnold. 2005. <i>Naturalism, Impressionism, The Film Age</i> . 3rd ed. Vol. 4 of <i>The Social History of Art</i> . London: Routledge.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Hauser (2005) [narrative]; (Hauser 2005) [parenthetical]



Multivolume Reference format work, edition Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. Title of the Multivolume: Subtitle. # ed. # vols. City, ST|Country: Publisher Name. included Reference example Hauser, Arnold. 2005. The Social History of Art. 3rd ed. 4 vols. London: Routledge. Citation examples *If the reference entry encompasses multiple volumes, in-text citations must indicate the specific volume cited. Without page number: Hauser (2005, vol. 2) [narrative]; (Hauser 2005, vol. 2) [parenthetical] With page number: Hauser (2005, 2:110) [narrative]; (Hauser 2005, 2:110) [parenthetical] Reference format Single titled volume from Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. *Title of the Volume: Subtitle*. Vol. # of *Title of the Multivolume Work*. City, ST|Country: Publisher Name, yyyy–yyyy. multiple year publication Reference example Moore, C. 2013. From Grantham to the Falklands. Vol. 1 of Margaret Thatcher: The Authorized Biography. London: Allen Lane, 2013–2019. Citation examples Moore (2013) [narrative]; (Moore 2013) [parenthetical] Reference format Multivolume work published Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy-yyyy. Title of the Multivolume over multiple Work: Subtitle. # vols. City, ST | Country: Publisher Name. years Reference example Moore, C. 2013–2019. Margaret Thatcher: The Authorized Biography. 3 vols. London: Allen Lane. Citation examples *If the reference entry encompasses multiple volumes, in-text citations must indicate the specific volume cited. Without page number: Moore (2013–2019, vol. 1) [narrative]; (Moore 2013–2019, vol. 1) [parenthetical] With page number: Moore (2013–2019, 1:588) [narrative]; (Moore 2013–2019, 1:588) [parenthetical]



	Book chapter models
	book enapter models
One editor	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Book Chapter: Subtitle." In <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> , edited by Aaaa A. Editor, ####-####. City, ST County: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	Saks Berman, Joan. 1995. "From Chicago to Rainbow Bridge: In Search of Changing Woman." In <i>Voices of Feminist Therapy</i> , edited by Elizabeth Friar Williams, 11–25. Reading, UK: Harwood Academic Publishers.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Saks Berman (1995) [narrative]; (Saks Berman 1995) [parenthetical]
Two editors	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Book Chapter: Subtitle." In <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> , edited by Aaaa A. Editor and Bbbb B. Editor, ####—####. City, ST County: Publisher Name.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Schwab, Brendan, and Steven Finocchiaro. 2018. "'Don't Fix It!': The Role of Player Empowerment in the Prevention of Match-Fixing." In <i>Match-Fixing in Sport:</i> Comparative Studies from Australia, Japan, Korea, and Beyond, edited by Stacey Steele and Hayden Opie, 135–150. Abingdon, UK: Routledge.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Schwab and Finocchiaro (2018) [narrative]; (Schwab and Finocchiaro 2018) [parenthetical]
Three editors	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Book Chapter: Subtitle." In <i>Title of the Book: Subtitle</i> , edited by Aaaa A. Editor, Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor, ####—####. City, ST County: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	Adams, Zeno, Roland Füss, and Dieter G. Kaiser. 2008. "Macroeconomic Determinants of Commodity Futures Returns." In <i>The Handbook of Commodity Investing</i> , edited by Frank J. Fabozzi, Roland Füss, and Dieter G. Kaiser, 87–112. Hoboken, NJ: John Wiley & Sons.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Adams, Füss, and Kaiser (2008) [narrative]; (Adams, Füss, and Kaiser 2008) [parenthetical]



No credited author and republication

Reference format

"Title of the Book Chapter: Subtitle." (yyyy) yyyy. In *Title of the Book: Subtitle*, edited by Aaaa A. Editor, Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor, ####—####. City, ST|County: Publisher Name.

Reference example

"The Putney Debates: The Debate on the Franchise." (1647) 2003. In *Divine Right and Democracy: An Anthology of Political Writing in Stuart England*, edited by David Wooton, 285–316. Indianapolis, IN: Hackett

Citation examples

"Putney Debates" ([1647] 2003) [narrative]; ("Putney Debates" [1647] 2003) [parenthetical]

Author-supplied English translation of non-English title

Reference format

Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the book chapter in the original language: Subtitle" [English translation of the title]. In *Title of the book in the original language: Subtitle*, edited by Aaaa A. Editor, Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor, ####—####. City, ST|County: Publisher Name.

Reference example

Rey, B. 2006. "Le savoir universitaire: Un savoir sans problème?" [University knowledge: Problem-free knowledge?]. In *Situations de formation et problématisation*, edited by M. Fabre and E. Vellas, 143–158. Louvain-la-Neuve, Belgium: De Boeck.

Citation examples

Rey (2006) [narrative]; (Rey 2006) [parenthetical]

Published translation

Reference format

Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Book Chapter: Subtitle." Translated by Aaaa A. Translator, Bbbb B. Translator, and Cccc C. Translator. In *Title of the Book: Subtitle*, edited by Aaaa A. Editor, Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor, ####—####. City, ST|County: Publisher Name.

Reference example

Piaget, Jean. 1995. "Logical Operators and Social Life." Translated by Wolfe Mays. In *Sociological Studies*, edited by Leslie Smith, 134–157. Hove, UK: Routledge.

Citation examples

Piaget (1995) [narrative]; (Piaget 1995) [parenthetical]



Untitled volume, edition included

Reference format

Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Book Chapter: Subtitle." In Vol. # of *Title of the Multivolume Work: Subtitle*, edited by Aaaa A. Editor, Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor, ####–####. # ed. City, ST|County: Publisher Name.

Reference example

Remael, Aline. 2012. "Audiovisual Translation." In Vol. 1 of *Handbook of Translation Studies*, edited by Yves Gambier and Luc van Dooorslaer, 12–17. 2nd ed. Amsterdam: John Benjamins.

Citation examples

Remael (2012) [narrative]; (Remael 2012) [parenthetical]

Titled volume

Reference format

Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Book Chapter: Subtitle." In *Title of the Volume: Subtitle*, edited by Aaaa A. Editor, Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor, ####—####. Vol. # of *Title of the Multivolume Work: Subtitle*. City, ST|County: Publisher Name.

Reference example

Brooke, Jonathan E. 2018. "Calcutta: A Central Exchange Point for Widely Separate Worlds (1700–1840)." In *Since 1500*, edited by Aran MacKinnon and Elaine McClarnand MacKinnon, 103–120. Vol. 2 of *Places of Encounter: Time, Place, and Connectivity in World History*. New York: Routledge.

<u>Citation examples</u>

Brooke (2018) [narrative]; (Brooke 2018) [parenthetical]

Titled volume, edition included

Reference format

Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Book Chapter: Subtitle." In *Title of the Volume: Subtitle*, edited by Aaaa A. Editor, Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor, ####—####. # ed. Vol. # of *Title of the Multivolume Work: Subtitle*. City, ST|County: Publisher Name.

Reference example

Talmy, L. 2007. "Lexical Typologies." In *Grammatical Categories and the Lexicon*, edited by T. Shopen, 66–168. 2nd ed. Vol. 3 *of Language Typology and Syntactic Description*. Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press.

Citation examples

Talmy (2007) [narrative]; (Talmy 2007) [parenthetical]



	Conference models
Serial	Reference format
conference proceedings	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Presentation: Subtitle." Serial Proceedings/Journal Title ## (#): ####–###. https://doi.org/DOI.
	Reference example
	Albright, Madeleine. 1991. "The Role of the United States in Central Europe." <i>Proceedings of the Academy of Political Science</i> 38 (1): 71–84. https://doi.org/10.2307/1173814.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Albright (1991) [narrative]; (Albright 1991) [parenthetical]
Nonserial	Reference format
conference proceedings	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of Presentation: Subtitle." In <i>Title of the Proceedings Volume: Subtitle</i> , edited by Aaaa A. Editor, Bbbb B. Editor, and Cccc C. Editor, ####–####. City, ST County: Publisher Name.
	Reference example
	Shupe, A. D., Jr., B. L. Hardin, and D. G. Bromley. 1983. "A Comparison of Anti-cult Movements in the United States and West Germany." In <i>Of Gods and Men: New Religious Movements in the West—Proceedings of 1981 Annual Conference of the British Sociological Association Sociology of Religion Study Group</i> , edited by E. Barker, 177–194. Macon, GA: Mercer University Press.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Shupe, Hardin, and Bromley (1983) [narrative]; (Shupe, Hardin, and Bromley 1983) [parenthetical]
Paper	Reference format
presentation	Presenter, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Presenter, and Cccc C. Presenter. yyyy. "Title of the Paper Presentation: Subtitle." Paper presented at Conference Name, City, ST Country, Month yyyy.
	Reference example
	Bunn, Matthew, Anna Bennett, and Penny Jane Burke. 2018. "Temporalities of Trust and Betrayal: Teaching and Learning in the Neoliberal University." Paper presented at the Society for Research in Higher Education Annual Research Conference, Newport, UK, December 2018.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Bunn, Bennett, and Burke (2018) [narrative]; (Bunn, Bennett, and Burke, 2019) [parenthetical]



Poster presentation	Reference format Presenter, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Presenter, and Cccc C. Presenter. yyyy. "Title of the Paper Presentation: Subtitle." Poster presented at Conference Name, City, ST Country, Month yyyy.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Wagmiller, Robert L., Kendall LaParo, David Schrider, Rachel Wildfeuer, Matt Ford, and Shannon Marie Hitchcock. 2018. "Attitudes towards Interracial Marriage in a Diverse and Unequal Metropolis: A Lost Letter Study." Poster presented at the American Sociological Association 113th Annual Meeting, Philadelphia, PA, August 2018.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Wagmiller et al. (2018) [narrative]; (Wagmiller et al. 2018) [parenthetical]

Reference format a A. yyyy. "Title of the Dissertation: Subtitle." PhD diss., Institution Name. Reference example evin. 2005. "A Moral Psychology of Blame." PhD diss., Princeton University.
Citation examples O(5) [narrative]; (Zaragoza 2005) [parenthetical]
Reference format A. yyyy. "Title of the Thesis: Subtitle." Master's thesis, Institution Name. Reference example O15. "Addressing the Neglect of Local Peacebuilding Practices through ntaries: A Case of Everyday Gandhis." Master's thesis, University of Notre



Doctoral	Reference format
dissertation, published in online repository	Author, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Dissertation: Subtitle." PhD diss., Institution Name. https://URL.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Boudreaux, Corinne M. 2015. "The City Framed: A Photographic Examination of Space and Violence in Ciudad Juarez." PhD diss., Tulane University. https://digitallibrary.tulane.edu/islandora/object/tulane%3A27939/datastream/OBJ/download/.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Boudreaux (2015) [narrative]; (Boudreaux 2015) [parenthetical]
Master's thesis,	Reference format
published in online	Author, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Thesis: Subtitle." Master's thesis, Institution Name. https://URL.
repository	<u>Reference example</u>
	Choppy, Penda Theresia. 2018. "Attitudes to Slavery and Race in Seychellois Creole Oral Literature." Master's thesis, University of Birmingham. http://etheses.bham.ac.uk//id/eprint/8082/7/Choppy18MARes.pdf.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Choppy (2018) [narrative]; (Choppy 2018) [parenthetical]

Report models	
Multiple authors	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Report: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Agency Name.
	Reference example
	Lempert, Robert J., Parry Norling, Christopher G. Pernin, Susan A. Resetar, and Sergej Mahnovski. 2003. <i>Next Generation Environmental Technologies: Benefits and Barriers</i> . Santa Monica, CA: RAND.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Lempert et al. (2003) [narrative]; (Lempert et al. 2003) [parenthetical]



Organizational	Reference format
author, without	Organizational Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Report: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Agency Name.
abbreviation	<u>Reference example</u>
	National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism. 2016. <i>Alcohol Use Disorder: A Comparison between DSM-IV and DSM-5</i> . Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, National Institutes of Health.
	Citation examples
	National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism (2016) [narrative]; (National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism 2016) [parenthetical]
Organizational	Reference format
author, with abbreviation	ORGAUT (Organizational Author). yyyy. <i>Title of the Report: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Agency Name.
	Reference example
	NIAAA (National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism). 2016. <i>Alcohol Use Disorder:</i> A Comparison between DSM-IV and DSM-5. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, National Institutes of Health.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	NIAAA (2016) [narrative]; (NIAAA 2016) [parenthetical]
Online	Reference format
publication	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. <i>Title of the Report: Subtitle</i> . https://URL.
	Reference example
	Warner-Griffin, Catharine, Huili Liu, Chrystine Tadler, Debbie Herget, and Ben Dalton. 2017. Reading Achievement of U.S. Fourth-Grade Students in an International Context: First Look at the Progress in International Reading Literacy Study (PIRLS) and ePIRLS 2016. https://nces.ed.gov/pubs2018/2018017.pdf.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Warner-Griffin et al. (2018) [narrative]; (Warner-Griffin et al. 2018) [parenthetical]



Newspaper models	
Print	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Newspaper Article: Subtitle." <i>Newspaper Title</i> , Month dd, yyyy.
	Reference example
	Lewis, A. E. 1972. "5 Held in Plot to Bug Democrats' Office Here." Washington Post, June 18, 1972.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Lewis (1972) [narrative]; (Lewis 1972) [parenthetical]
Online	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Newspaper Article: Subtitle." <i>Newspaper Title</i> , Month dd, yyyy. https://URL.
	Reference example
	Kantor, Alice. 2021. "Women Primed to Fill Cyber Security Talent Gap." Financial Times, January 25, 2021. https://www.ft.com/content/acf4ac78-c738-48c6-8de1-077697e062d6.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Kantor (2021) [narrative]; (Kantor 2021) [parenthetical]
Editorial	Reference format
(online), with no credited author	Newspaper Title. yyyy. "Title of the Newspaper Editorial: Subtitle." Month dd, yyyy. https://URL.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Guardian. 2019. "The Guardian View on the Rise in Domestic Killings: Figures to Shock Politicians to Act." September 13, 2019. https://www.theguardian.com/commentisfree/2019/sep/13/the-guardian-view-on-the-rise-in-domestic-killings-figures-to-shock-politicians-to-act.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Guardian (2019) [narrative]; (Guardian 2019) [parenthetical]



	Magazine models
D : 4 : 11	
Print with month	Reference format
and day	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Magazine Article: Subtitle." <i>Magazine Title</i> , Month dd, yyyy.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Hersey, John. 1946. "Hiroshima." <i>New Yorker</i> , August 31, 1946.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Hersey (1946) [narrative]; (Hersey 1946) [parenthetical]
Print with month	Reference format
only	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Magazine Article: Subtitle." <i>Magazine Title</i> , Month yyyy.
	Reference example
	Garber, Marjorie. 2002. "Our Genius Problem." <i>Atlantic</i> , December 2002.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Garber (2002) [narrative]; (Garber 2002) [parenthetical]
Online	Reference format
publication	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Magazine Article: Subtitle." <i>Magazine Title</i> , Month dd, yyyy. https://URL.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Ruff, C. 2016. "Computer Science, Meet Humanities: In New Majors, Opposites Attract." Chronicle of Higher Education, February 5, 2016. https://www.chronicle.com/article/Computer-Science-Meet/235075/.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Ruff (2016) [narrative]; (Ruff 2016) [parenthetical]
Online	Reference format
publication,	Magazine Title. yyyy. "Title of the Magazine Article: Subtitle." Month dd, yyyy. https://URL.
with no credited	<u>Reference example</u>
author	Economist. 2019. "Europe Ponders How to Avoid Blame for No-Deal." September 12, 2019. https://www.economist.com/britain/2019/09/12/europe-ponders-how-to-avoid-blame-for-no-deal.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Economist (2019) [narrative]; (Economist 2019) [parenthetical]



Web models		
Web page with multiple authors	Reference format	
	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Web Page: Subtitle." Website Publisher Name. https://URL.	
	Reference example	
	Harris, Beth, and Steven Zucker. 2015. "Haussmann the Demolisher and the Creation of Modern Paris." Smarthistory. https://smarthistory.org/haussmann-the-demolisher-and-the-creation-of-modern-paris.	
	<u>Citation examples</u>	
	Harris and Zucker (2015) [narrative]; (Harris and Zucker 2015) [parenthetical]	
Web page with organizational author, no publication date ("n.d."), and "accessed" date	Reference format	
	Organizational Author. n.d. "Title of the Web Page: Subtitle." Website Publisher Name. Accessed Month dd, yyyy. https://URL.	
	Reference example	
	Pitt Rivers Museum. n.d. "Conservation Case Study: Noh Theatre Masks." Pitt Rivers Museum, University of Oxford. Accessed June 11, 2021. https://www.prm.ox.ac.uk/conservation-case-study-noh-theatre-masks.	
	<u>Citation examples</u>	
	Pitt Rivers Museum (n.d.) [narrative]; (Pitt Rivers Museum, n.d.) [parenthetical]	
Blog post	Reference format	
	Author, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Blog Post: Subtitle." <i>Blog Title</i> (blog). Month dd, yyyy. https://URL.	
	Reference example	
	Price, D. 2018. "On Using Archives and Freedom of Information Act for Anthropological Research." <i>Anthro{dendum}</i> (blog). October 7, 2018. https://anthrodendum.org/2018/10/07/on-using-archives-and-freedom-of-information-act-for-anthropological-research.	
	<u>Citation examples</u>	
	Price (2018) [narrative]; (Price 2018) [parenthetical]	



m .	Defending frames
Tweet	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A. (@Handle). yyyy. "First 160 characters of the tweet." Twitter, Month dd, yyyy, hh:mm a.m. p.m. https://URL.
	Reference example
	Singer, Peter (@PeterSinger). 2019. "Why are animal rights activists the orphans of the left? Will Kymlicka offers some answers." Twitter, May 1, 2019, 7:52 a.m. https://twitter.com/PeterSinger/status/1123555871198412800.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Singer (2019) [narrative]; (Singer 2019) [parenthetical]
Facebook post	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A. yyyy. "First 160 words of the post." Facebook, Month dd, yyyy. https://URL.
	Reference example
	Thunberg, Greta. 2019. "Climate strike is named 2019 word of the year! #climatestrike." Facebook, November 9, 2019.
	https://www.facebook.com/gretathunbergsweden/posts/970039473363873.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Thunberg (2019) [narrative]; (Thunberg 2019) [parenthetical]

Software, app, and dataset models		
Reference format a A., Bbbb B. Developer, and Cccc C. Developer. yyyy. "Title of the Software: . #.#. Producer Name Archive Name. https://URL. Reference example Robert McKinnon, Thomas Podkowiak, Mark Roman, Jared Schmidt, Sean Werst, and Jill Wyman. 2021. "Spectrum." V. 6.06. Avenir Health. nirhealth.org/Download/Spectrum/SpecInstall.EXE. Citation examples 21) [narrative]; (Hecht et al. 2021) [parenthetical]		



Software, with organizational author and version number (FORCE11 compliant)	Reference format
	Organizational Developer. yyyy. "Title of the Software: Subtitle." V. #.#. Producer Name Archive Name. https://URL.
	Reference example
	Quantum ESPRESSO Foundation. 2020. "Quantum ESPRESSO." V. 6.7. GitHub. https://github.com/QEF/q-e/releases/download/qe-6.7.0/qe-6.7-ReleasePack.tgz.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Quantum ESPRESSO Foundation (2020) [narrative]; (Quantum ESPRESSO Foundation 2020) [parenthetical]
Software by	Reference format
individual developers,	Developer, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Developer, and Cccc C. Developer. yyyy. "Title of the Software: Subtitle." Producer Name Archive Name. Accessed Month dd, yyyy. https://URL.
without version	Reference example
number (FORCE11	Short, W. M. 2020. "MultiWordNet." Python Package Index. Accessed February 26, 2021. https://pypi.org/project/multiwordnet/0.1.3/#files.
compliant)	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Short (2020) [narrative]; (Short 2020) [parenthetical]
Software by	Reference format
organizational developer, with	ORGDEV (Organizational Developer). yyyy. "Title of the Software: Subtitle." Producer Name Archive Name. Accessed Month dd, yyyy. https://URL.
abbreviation	Reference example
and without version number (FORCE11 compliant)	HISP (Health Information Systems Programme). 2020. "DHIS2." University of Oslo. Accessed February 26, 2021. https://releases.dhis2.org/2.35/dhis2-stable-2.35.1.war.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	HISP (2020) [narrative]; (HISP 2020) [parenthetical]
Mobile app by	Reference format
individual developer	Developer, Aaaa A. yyyy. <i>Title of the Mobile App: Subtitle</i> . V. #.#. Producer Name. OS Version or later.
	Reference example
	Schneider, Ziv. 2016. <i>The Museum of Stolen Art VR</i> . V. 1.0. Ziv Schneider. Android 4.4 or later.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Schneider (2016) [narrative]; (Schneider 2016) [parenthetical]



Mobile app by	Reference format
organizational developer	Organizational Developer. yyyy. <i>Title of the Mobile App: Subtitle</i> . V. #.#. Producer Name. OS Version or later.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	American Red Cross. 2021. First Aid: American Red Cross. V. 2.11.1. American Red Cross. iOS 13.0 or later.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	American Red Cross (2021) [narrative]; (American Red Cross 2021) [parenthetical]
Dataset, with	Reference format
accession and version	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Dataset: Subtitle" (dataset). Accession number ######. V. #.#. Archive Name. https://doi.org.DOI.
numbers	<u>Reference example</u>
	Hevner Mueller, Kate. 2015. "American Symphony Orchestra Repertoires 1842–1970" (dataset). Accession number ICPSR 35235. V. 1. National Archive of Data on Arts & Culture. https://doi.org/10.3886/ICPSR35235.v1.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Hevner Mueller (2015) [narrative]; (Hevner Mueller 2015) [parenthetical]
Dataset, without	Reference format
version number	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Dataset: Subtitle" (dataset). Archive Name. Accessed Month dd, yyyy. https://doi.org.DOI.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Magid, K., V. Sarkol, and A. Mesoudi. 2017. "Experimental Priming of Independent and Interdependent Activity Does Not Affect Culturally-Variable Psychological Processes" (dataset). Dryad. Accessed February 22, 2021. https://doi.org/10.5061/dryad.7j270.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Magid, Sarkol, and Mesoudi (2017) [narrative]; (Magid, Sarkol, and Mesoudi 2017) [parenthetical]



Audiovisual models	
Film (original	Reference format
release)	Director, Aaaa A., dir. yyyy. <i>Title of the Film: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Distributer Name.
	Reference example
	Jenkins, Barry, dir. 2018. <i>If Beale Street Could Talk</i> . Los Angeles: Annapurna Pictures.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Jenkins (2018) [narrative]; (Jenkins 2018) [parenthetical]
Film	Reference format
(recording)	Director, Aaaa A., dir. yyyy. <i>Title of the Film: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Distributor Name, yyyy. Format.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Bogdanovich, Peter, dir. 1971. <i>The Last Picture Show</i> . Culver City, CA: Columbia Pictures, 1999. DVD.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Bogdanovich (1971) [narrative]; (Bogdanovich 1971) [parenthetical]
Film	Reference format
(streaming)	Director, Aaaa A., dir. yyyy. <i>Title of the Film: Subtitle</i> . City, ST Country: Distributor Name. https://URL.
	Reference example
	Zhao, Chloé, dir. 2020. <i>Nomadland</i> . Century City, CA: Searchlight Pictures. https://www.hulu.com/movie/nomadland.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Zhao (2020) [narrative]; (Zhao 2020) [parenthetical]
Television	Reference format
episode (original	Director, Aaaa A., and Bbbb B. Directors, dirs. yyyy. <i>Title of the Television Series</i> . Season #, episode #, "Title of the Episode." Aired Month dd, yyyy, on Network.
broadcast), with multiple directors	<u>Reference example</u>
	Beavan, C., and J. Runcie, dirs. 2006. <i>Simon Schama's Power of Art</i> . Season 1, episode 3, "Rembrandt." Aired November 3, 2006, on BBC Two.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Beavan and Runcie (2006) [narrative]; (Beavan and Runcie 2006) [parenthetical]



Television episode (recording)	Reference format
	Director, Aaaa A., dir. yyyy. <i>Title of the Television Series</i> . Season #, episode #, "Title of the Episode." Aired Month dd, yyyy, on Network. City, ST Country: Distributor Name, yyyy. Format.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Archer, W., dir. 1995. <i>The Simpsons</i> . Season 7, episode 4, "Bart Sells His Soul." Aired October 8, 1995, on Fox. Los Angeles: 20th Century Fox, 2005. DVD.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Archer (1995) [narrative]; (Archer 1995) [parenthetical]
Television	Reference format
episode (streaming)	Director, Aaaa A., dir. yyyy. <i>Title of the Television Series</i> . Season #, episode #, "Title of the Episode." Aired Month dd, yyyy, on Network. https://URL.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Holland, Todd, dir. 1990. <i>Twin Peaks</i> . Season 2, episode 4, "Laura's Secret Diary." Aired October 13, 1990, on ABC. https://www.netflix.com/title/70153408.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Holland (1990) [narrative]; (Holland 1990) [parenthetical]
Classical album	Reference format
track (original recording), with	Composer, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Short-Form Composition." Track # on Aaaa A. Artist, Title of the Album: Subtitle. Production Company Name Catalogue ######, format.
composer	<u>Reference example</u>
emphasized	Cage, John. 1994. "In a Landscape." Track 1 on Stephen Drury, <i>In a Landscape: Piano Music of John Cage</i> . BMG D 108099, compact disc.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Cage (1994) [narrative]; (Cage 1994) [parenthetical]
Classical album	Reference format
track (original recording), with solo artist emphasized	Artist, Aaaa A., instrument. yyyy. "Title of the Short-Form Composition." By Aaaa A. Composer. Track # on <i>Title of the Album: Subtitle</i> . Production Company Name Catalogue ######, format.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Drury, Stephen, piano. 1994. "In a Landscape." By John Cage. Track 1 on <i>In a Landscape:</i> Piano Music of John Cage. BMG D 108099, compact disc.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Drury (1994) [narrative]; (Drury 1994) [parenthetical]



Classical album (reissue), with composer emphasized and organizational artist	Reference format
	Composer, Aaaa A. yyyy. <i>Title of the Album: Subtitle</i> . Organizational Artist, conducted by Aaaa A. Conductor. Production Company Name Catalogue ######, yyyy, format.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Mahler, Gustav. 1960. <i>Symphony no. 2 in C Minor</i> . New York Philharmonic Orchestra, conducted by Leonard Bernstein. Sony SM2K 63159, 2007, compact disc.
(orchestra)	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Mahler (1960) [narrative]; (Mahler 1960) [parenthetical]
Classical album	Reference format
track (streaming),	Composer, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Short-Form Composition." Platform. Track # on Aaaa A. Artist, <i>Title of the Album: Subtitle</i> . Production Company Name.
with composer	<u>Reference example</u>
emphasized	Rimsky-Korsakov, N. 1990. "The Flight of the Bumble Bee (Der Hummelflug)." Spotify. Track 5 on E. Glennie, <i>Rhythm Song</i> . RCA.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Rimsky-Korsakov (1990) [narrative]; (Rimsky-Korsakov 1990) [parenthetical]
Classical album	Reference format
track (streaming), with solo artist	Artist, Aaaa A., instrument. yyyy. "Title of the Short-Form Composition." By Aaaa A. Composer. Platform. Track # on <i>Title of the Album: Subtitle</i> . Production Company Name.
emphasized	Reference example
	Glennie, E., percussion. 1990. "The Flight of the Bumble Bee (Der Hummelflug)." By N. Rimsky-Korsakov. Spotify. Track 5 on <i>Rhythm Song</i> . RCA.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Glennie (1990) [narrative]; (Glennie 1990) [parenthetical]
Nonclassical	Reference format
album track (original recording)	Artist, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Song." Track # on <i>Title of the Album: Subtitle</i> . Production Company Name Catalogue ######, format.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Cohen, Leonard. 1988. "Everybody Knows." Track 3 on <i>I'm Your Man</i> . Columbia CK 44191, compact disc.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Cohen (1988) [narrative]; (Cohen 1988) [parenthetical]



Nonclassical	Reference format
album track (reissue), with	Artist, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Song." By Aaaa A. Composer. Track # on <i>Title of the Album: Subtitle</i> . Production Company Name Catalogue ######, yyyy format.
composer	<u>Reference example</u>
	Monk, Thelonious. 1957. "April in Paris." By Vernon Duke. Track 1 on <i>Thelonious Himself</i> . Original Jazz Classics OJC 254, 1986, 33 1/3 rpm.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Monk (1957) [narrative]; (Monk 1957) [parenthetical]
Nonclassical	Reference format
album track (original	Organizational Artist. yyyy. "Title of the Song." Track # on Various Artists, <i>Title of the Album: Subtitle</i> . Production Company Name Catalogue ######, format.
compilation	<u>Reference example</u>
recording), with organizational	Public Enemy. 1989. "Fight the Power." Track 1 on Various Artists, <i>Do the Right Thing:</i> Original Motion Picture Soundtrack. Motown MOTD-6272, compact disc.
artist	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Public Enemy (1989) [narrative]; (Public Enemy 1989) [parenthetical]
Nonclassical	Reference format
album track (streaming)	Artist, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Song." Format. Track # on <i>Title of the Album: Subtitle</i> . Production Company Name.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Simone, Nina. 1966. "Four Women." Spotify. Track 2 on Wild Is the Wind. Philips.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Simone (1966) [narrative]; (Simone 1966) [parenthetical]
Artwork	Reference format
	Artist, Aaaa A. yyyy. <i>Title of the Painting: Subtitle</i> . Medium, height x width. Institution Name, City, ST Country. https://URL.
	Reference example
	Wiley, Kehinde. 2008. <i>Three Wise Men Greeting Entry into Lagos</i> . Oil on canvas, 72 × 95 1/4". Pennsylvania Academy of the Fine Arts, Philadelphia. https://www.pafa.org/sites/default/files/artworkpics/2009_20_I.jpg.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Wiley (2008) [narrative]; (Wiley 2008) [parenthetical]



Streaming video	Reference format
	Presenter, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Video: Subtitle." Filmed Month dd, yyyy in City, ST Country. Platform Name Sponsor Name video, hh:mm:ss. https://URL.
	Reference example
	Butler, J. 2016. "Why Preserve the Life of the Other?" Filmed March 30, 2016, in New Haven, CT. Yale University video, 1:22:24. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=40YPnzv5JzM.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Butler (2016) [narrative]; (Butler 2016) [parenthetical]
Podcast episode	Reference format
(download)	Host, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Podcast Episode: Subtitle." Produced by Aaaa A. Producer, Bbbb B. Producer, and Cccc C. Producer. In <i>Title of the Podcast: Subtitle</i> , Month dd, yyyy. Podcast, format, hh:mm:ss. https://URL.
	Reference example
	Giddens, Rhiannon. 2021. "Guys and Dolls: Offenbach's <i>The Tales of Hoffmann</i> ." Produced by Merrin Lazyan. In <i>Aria Code</i> , July 7, 2021. Podcast, MP3 audio, 40:11. https://www.wnycstudios.org/podcasts/aria-code/episodes/aria-code-offenbachtales-hoffmann-erin-morley.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Giddens (2021) [narrative]; (Giddens 2021) [parenthetical]
Podcast episode	Reference format
(streaming)	Host, Aaaa A. yyyy. "Title of the Podcast Episode: Subtitle." Produced by Aaaa A. Producer, Bbbb B. Producer, and Cccc C. Producer. In <i>Title of the Podcast: Subtitle</i> , Month dd, yyyy. Podcast, Platform, hh:mm:ss. https://URL.
	Reference example
	Harford, Tim. 2022. "The Wild Turkeys of Schleswig." Produced by Ryan Dilley, Courtney Guarino, and Emily Vaughn. In <i>Cautionary Tales</i> , November 28, 2022. Podcast, Pushkin, 44:12. https://www.pushkin.fm/podcasts/cautionary-tales/the-wild-turkeys-of-schleswig.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Harford (2020) [narrative]; (Harford 2020) [parenthetical]



Unpublished and informally published model	
Manuscript	Reference format
-	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Unpublished Manuscript: Subtitle." Unpublished manuscript, last modified Month dd, yyyy. Format.
	Reference example
	Swanson, K. W. 2006. "Hog Heaven or Hell's Kitchen? <i>Abbau</i> and Landscape in Upton Sinclair's <i>The Jungle</i> ." Unpublished manuscript, last modified November 14, 2006. Microsoft Word file.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Swanson (2006) [narrative]; (Swanson 2006) [parenthetical]
Working paper	Reference format
	Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Working Paper: Subtitle." Group Working Paper ######. Institution, City, ST Country. https://URL.
	Reference example
	Bojinov, Iavor, Prithwiraj Choudhury, and Jacqueline N. Lane. 2021. "Virtual Watercoolers: A Field Experiment on Virtual Synchronous Interactions and Performance of Organizational Newcomers." Harvard Business School Working Paper 21-125. Harvard Business School, Harvard University, Cambridge, MA. https://www.hbs.edu/faculty/Pages/download.aspx?name=21-125.pdf.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Bojinov, Choudhury, and Lane (2021) [narrative]; (Bojinov, Choudhury, and Lane 2021) [parenthetical]



Archival material models

Titled document cited, with accession number and filing information

*Each document should be registered as a unique reference entry if the text cites multiple documents from the same paper collection. Each entry should repeat full information about the collection.

Reference format

Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. "Title of the Document: Subtitle." Accession #######, box ##, folder ##. Paper Collection Name. Archive Name, Institution Name, City, ST | Country.

Reference example

Long, Huey P. 1935. "Our Blundering Government." LaRC 282, box 1, folder 1. William B. Wisdom Collection on Huey P. Long, 1924–75. Louisiana Research Collection, Tulane University, New Orleans, LA.

Citation examples

Long (1935) [narrative]; (Long 1935) [parenthetical]

Untitled document cited, with accession number

*Each document should be registered as a unique reference entry if the text cites multiple documents from the same paper collection. Each entry should repeat full information about the collection.

Reference format

Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. yyyy. Document description.

Accession #######. Paper Collection Name. Archive Name, Institution Name, City, ST|Country.

Reference example

Elgar, Edward. 1917. Letter to Sidney Colvin. Colvin/Elgar/2. Sir Sidney Colvin Archive. Fitzwilliam Museum, University of Cambridge, Cambridge, UK.

Citation examples

Elgar (1917) [narrative]; (Elgar 1917) [parenthetical]



Titled document (book), with accession number and approximate (circa, "ca." date range) *Each document should be registered as a unique reference entry if the text cites multiple documents from the same paper collection. Each entry should repeat full information about the collection.

Reference format

Author, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Author, and Cccc C. Author. ca. yyyy–yyyy. *Title of the Book:* Subtitle. Accession #######. Paper Collection Name. Archive Name, Institution Name, City, ST|Country.

Reference example

Berendt, C. H. ca. 1864–1873. *Miscellanae Maya*. Item 179. Berendt-Brinton Linguistic Collection. Kislak Center for Special Collections, Rare Books and Manuscripts, University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, PA.

Citation example

Berendt (ca. 1864–1873) [narrative]; (Berendt, ca. 1864–1873) [parenthetical]

Patent, legal case, and statute models	
Patent	Reference format
	Inventor, Aaaa A., Bbbb B. Inventor, and Cccc C. Inventor. yyyy. Patent description. Patent Type #,###,###, filed Month dd, yyyy, and issued Month dd, yyyy. https://URL.
	Reference example
	Pfeifer, Andrea, Andreas Muhs, Maria Pihlgren, Oskar Adolfsson, and Fred Van Leuven. 2016. Phospospecific antibodies recognising tau. European Patent 2,764,022, filed October 5, 2012, and issued August 17, 2016.
	https://worldwide.espacenet.com/publicationDetails/originalDocument?FT=D&date=20 170222&DB=EPODOC&locale=en_EP&CC=EP&NR=2764022B9&KC=B9&ND=4.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Pfeifer et al. (2016) [narrative]; (Pfeifer et al. 2016) [parenthetical]



II C C	Defending for any format
U.S. Supreme	Reference format
Court case	Name v. Name, ### U.S. #### (yyyy). https://URL.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	Cherokee Nation of Oklahoma v. Leavitt, 543 U.S. 631 (2005). https://supreme.justia.com/cases/federal/us/543/631/.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Cherokee Nation of Oklahoma v. Leavitt (2005) [narrative]; (Cherokee Nation of Oklahoma v. Leavitt 2005) [parenthetical]
U.S. state	Reference format
supreme court case	Name v. Name, ### State Reporter Abbr. A ####, ### State Reporter Abbr. B ####, ### State Reporter Abbr. C #### (yyyy). https://URL.
	<u>Reference example</u>
	People v. Diaz, 51 Cal. 4th 84, 244 P.3d 501, 119 Cal. Rptr. 3d 105 (2011). https://scocal.stanford.edu/opinion/people-v-diaz-33928.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	People v. Diaz (2011) [narrative]; (People v. Diaz 2011) [parenthetical]
U.K. Supreme	Reference format
Court case	Name v. Name, [yyyy] UKSC ### (Jurisdiction Abbr.). https://URL.
(neutral	Reference example
citation)	Patel v. Mirza, [2016] UKSC 42 (Eng.). https://www.bailii.org/uk/cases/UKSC/2016/42.html.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Patel v. Mirza (2016) [narrative]; (Patel v. Mirza 2016) [parenthetical]
U.K. High	Reference format
Court, Queen's	Name v. Name, [yyyy] E.W.H.C. K.B. Q.B. ### (Jurisdiction Abbr.). https://URL.
Bench case (neutral citation)	<u>Reference example</u>
	Murphy v. Ministry of Defence, [2016] E.W.H.C. Q.B. 3 (Eng.). https://www.bailii.org/ew/cases/EWHC/QB/2016/3.html.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Murphy v. Ministry of Defence (2016) [narrative]; (Murphy v. Ministry of Defence 2016) [parenthetical]



U.S. federal	Reference format
statute from United States	Title of the Statute: Subtitle, ## U.S.C. § #### (yyyy). https://URL.
Codes	
Codes	<u>Reference example</u>
	Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. § 387 (1938). https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title21/chapter9/subchapter9&edition=prelim.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (1938) [narrative]; (Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act 1938) [parenthetical]
U.S. federal	Reference format
statute from	Title of the Statute: Subtitle, Pub. L. No. ###-###, ## Stat. ## (yyyy). https://URL.
United States	Reference example
Statutes at Large	James Zadroga 9/11 Health and Compensation Act of 2010, Pub. L. No. 111-347, 124 Stat. 3623 (2011). https://www.congress.gov/bill/111th-congress/house-bill/847/text.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	James Zadroga 9/11 Health and Compensation Act (2011) [narrative]; (James Zadroga 9/11 Health and Compensation Act 2011) [parenthetical]
U.K. statute,	Reference format
enacted before	Title of the Statute: Subtitle, yyyy, ## & ## Regnal Abbr. c. ## (yyyy). (Jurisdiction Abbr.).
1963	Reference example
	Church of England Assembly (Powers) Act, 1919, 9 & 10 Geo. 5 c. 76 (Eng.).
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Church of England Assembly (Powers) Act (1919) [narrative]; (Church of England Assembly [Powers] Act 1919) [parenthetical]
U.K. statute,	Reference format
enacted after	Title of the Statute: Subtitle, yyyy, c. ## (Jurisdiction Abbr.). https://URL.
1963	Reference example
	Climate Change Act, 2008, c. 27 (Eng.). http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/27/contents.
	<u>Citation examples</u>
	Climate Change Act (2008) [narrative]; (Climate Change Act 2008) [parenthetical]